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Chair’s Foreword 
 

I would like to open our Annual Report and Accounts for 2017 with a quote from a 
predecessor of mine as Chair of what was then the Civil Service Benevolent Fund, back 
in 1987: 

“The organisation must not be content to tick over, to rest on its oars, to coast along 
maintaining what it does so well. It should (and it will) continue to find out where help 
is needed and provide it, to identify and meet new needs, and to develop its services to 
the changing needs of the times.”  

Despite being over 30 years old, this message from Sir Brian Cubbon remains highly 
relevant and its sentiment entirely contemporary. For me, it perfectly sums up and 
reaffirms the ethos and approach which today’s Charity has wholeheartedly adopted.    

Working hard to live up to this ambition, the Charity has tested new and different 
ways to deliver more help to more people throughout 2017 - and I am delighted that 
we are able to detail some highly significant achievements within this Annual Report 
and Accounts.  

Most importantly, across 2017 people came to us for help of one kind or another over 
40,000 times compared to 15,000 occasions in 2016 – a dramatic year on year 
increase of over 164%.  

The Charity has offered a wealth of valuable guidance covering a range of issues for 
those in need, provided invaluable financial advice (alongside grant payments of over 
£2.4m) and crucially, it has helped turn many peoples’ lives around, offering them 
effective support when life has taken a turn for the worse. 

We simply couldn’t do this without the support and enthusiasm of our 333-strong 
team of volunteers, our partners and ambassadors, and of course, our donors.  Above 
all, the Charity is extremely grateful for all of their hard work, support and generosity.  

A very big thank you to the Civil Service Insurance Society, in particular, our largest 
donor. The CSIS has once again provided our Charity with very generous support 
through its own Charity Fund.  CSIS also supported the annual awards ceremony held 
in December, which offered the Charity an excellent opportunity to celebrate and 
thank all of our volunteers for their fundamental contribution.  

Finally, I would like to thank the Trustees and all staff from the Charity for everything 
they have done this year, and for helping the organisation to achieve some excellent 
results on behalf of those which it exists to serve.  Despite this - and echoing the above 
message from 1987, the Charity will certainly not be ‘resting on its oars’ - we will 
continue to seek ever more effective ways to offer more help to more people in our 
lifelong Civil Service community. 

 

 

Sue Owen 
Chair, Board of Trustees 



THE CHARITY FOR CIVIL SERVANTS 
TRUSTEES’ ANNUAL REPORT 

 

   2 

The Trustees of The Charity for Civil Servants present their Annual Report for the year 
ended 31 December 2017 under the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006, 
including the Trustees’ Annual Report comprising the Strategic Report and the 
Directors’ Report under the 2006 Act, together with the audited financial statements 
for the year. 

Trustees’ Strategic Report 

Activities, Achievements and Performance 
In 2016, we set out a strategy for the next five years.  This strategy was based on three 
themes: Engagement, Service Evolution and Sustainability. The core premise of this 
strategy can be illustrated by: 

And this is what we’ve done. By adding in new service provision, widening our reach 
and building a base on which to move forward, we’ve achieved the following: 
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Help By Type

Key Service Rest of Applications One-to-One Events Partners Digital Help

Key Services = Money and Debt Guidance Service, Carers’ Passports and Statements, Wellbeing Conversations, Rest of 
Applications = all other Applications, One-to-One = phone calls, emails, advice sessions, Events = learning seminars, 
Partners = referrals to external service providers, Digital Help = engagement tools and help downloads.  
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Key Measures of Success in 2017 
The 3 key themes enable us to reach, be relevant for, and help more people.  

Service Evolution: 

Increasing the amount of help we deliver, 
including partners and digital tools… 

 

…Whilst building on our core service 
provision of one-to-one support. 

 

Engagement:  

Developing new ways to reach our 
audiences by focussing on things that 
matter to people through Issue-Led 
Campaigns. 

 

Connecting with Government 
Departments on a more personal basis, 
strengthening our relationships. 

 

Sustainability:  

Address long-standing trends, such as the 
decline in regular givers.  

 

Develop partnerships to allow  
us to increase help provision in  
a sustainable way. 

 

Increase in 
departmental advocates 

requesting events 78% 

Applications 

+ 13% 
2016 2017 

8,679 9,775 

40,000  15,000  

2016 2017 

Issue-Led Campaign Reach 

C. 550,000 people 

with 50% reached for the 1st time 

Approaches for Help 

Attrition Rate 

2016 2017 
-8.35% -5.01% 

Instances of Help 

Existing Partnerships 

New Partnerships 
1,393 

117 
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Help Given Out in 2017 
 People came to us for help over 40,000 times. An increase of 164% on 2016. 
 On an individual basis, our caseworkers received 9,775 applications (up 12.6% 

on 2016) that includes: 
o Providing £2.5m in financial assistance in 4,636 payments 
o Issuing over 1,900 Carer’s Passports and Statements 

 2,196 people were helped through seminars on key issues such as caring, stress 
or financial capability. 

 23,571 people were helped through the provision of new digital tools and 
resources for self-help. 

 80% of our help was provided to working civil servants, 6% to retired staff, 1% 
to dependants and 13% to former civil servants. 

Service Delivery and Service Evolution 
Developing new ways of helping people, on top of our business as usual, has enabled 
us to offer more help. 

The Charity helps people in many ways – financial support, learning and awareness 
sessions, online help and other services. Developing our engagement activity to focus 
on key issues facing the Civil Service community has also enabled us to develop a high 
number of self-serve methods of help. 
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• Carers Statement 
• Caring Downloads 
• National Free Wills Network 
• Law Express App 
• BeMindful Online Course 
• Stress Test 

 
 

“I was rescued by the 
Charity. You have no idea  

of the relief I felt.” 
 

Jennifer, DVLA 

                                       New   Existing 
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Grant Making Policy 
Our charitable object is to alleviate hardship 
or distress (whether financial or otherwise) 
for the public benefit of current or former 
civil servants and their financial dependants.  
 
The majority of the Charity’s charitable work is 
carried out by making grants to individuals. 
Grants are made within our charitable object 
and agreed strategy of the Charity. 
 
All grants are subject to a formal approval 
process. We establish Civil Service eligibility, need, circumstances and alternative 
resources to ensure that we do not use funds where other funding is available.  
 

We award grants on the basis of: 

 Eligibility – the applicant must be a current, former or retired eligible person, or 
their financial dependant; 

 Circumstances that cause hardship and distress including ill health, caring, 
bereavement, domestic abuse, relationship breakdown, reduced income and unsafe 
or inappropriate accommodation; 

 Need – establishing the specific needs, which may not always be exactly what has 
been requested – for example if someone wanted a sofa but their child had no bed, 
the bed would be more of a priority; and 

 Alternative resources – this may be an entitlement to benefits, or grants from 
other charities, and in some cases they may be additional help rather than 
alternative help. 

 

In all financial applications we require a 
recent full monthly bank statement for all 
members of the household.  This enables us 
to establish the situation and the need and to 
hold an informed discussion with the 
applicant to reach a decision. Where savings 
exceed £12,000, we would not normally 
consider financial assistance, but may 
instead give advice to other service support 
if required. 
 
We apply maximum amounts to certain 
grants and review these annually. For 
example, we have increased the maximum 
payment for funeral expenses from £2,000 
to £3,000, unless there are exceptional 
circumstances. Where people are based 
overseas, we are not always able to offer a 

 

“You helped us move into 
a new property. I don’t 

know how we could have 
done this without you.” 

 

Joyce, DWP 

Adoracion – A retiree we helped last year 
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grant for some particular items (for 
example grants towards mobility vehicles) 
because there are insufficient checking 
mechanisms to ensure provision of the 
appropriate equipment or health and safety.  
 
The main type of financial assistance to 
individuals is through direct financial help 
and/or payment to suppliers for goods and 
services for the person and their 
dependants.  Most of our financial support 
payments are one-off grants. In addition, there are some ongoing allowances being 
made, although these have not been made available for some years to new applicants.  
In 2017, we awarded around £2.5 million in grants and allowances.  
 
Grants include financial help payments for emergency situations, grants to replace 
items that have broken or need repair, grants towards essential household bills, 
advanced rent and deposit for a new rented property, travel expenses, mobility aids 
and adaptations, as well as payment to third party suppliers for assessment of 
wellbeing, relationship counselling. Some of these services are provided by reputable 
third party suppliers such as Relate and Anxiety UK. 
 
To enhance the grant-making we do, we also develop in-house services to provide 
advice and solutions to alleviate hardship and distress. For example, we provide FCA 
compliant money advice and guidance to help people take action on their debts and to 
help people with their financial capability. Alongside a breathing space grant the 
advice will aim to prevent the situation from getting worse or prevent the problem 
recurring. 
 

Applications 
A proportion of our services require an application to a case worker who reviews all of 
the individual’s circumstances.  We then holistically work with applicants respecting 
how they want to work with us and tailor our service delivery around the three key 
streams of our service delivery.   These are: 

 Financial support 
 Caring support 
 Wellbeing support 

Throughout 2017 we analysed the circumstances which led people to come to us for 
support: 

 

“In my darkest hour, I thought 
we were going to be homeless – 
you kept my family together” 

 

Emily, DEFRA 

36%

54%

10% Main Issue 
When Coming to the 
Charity for Support

Caring

Financial

Wellbeing
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Financial 

Payments 
A key way we help people is by providing financial support. In 2017, we made 4,636 
payments to alleviate need. 98% of the respondents to feedback from our financial 
help stated that our services met or exceeded their expectations. 

 

Money Advice and Guidance Service 
Alongside generalised information (or advice) that 
we provide to applicants, we also have a Financial 
Conduct Authority compliant in-house Money 
Advice and Guidance Service. This involves a 
personal review of all circumstances and gives 
individuals tailored information on how to change 
their financial situation. This year, 865 people came 
to us for debt and budgeting advice in 2017, an 
increase of 58% on 2016. 

Online Support 
Our Help and Advice Team has also been involved 
in creating content for providing online help, 
including the budget calculator tool which was 
used over 1,300 times in 2017, providing quick and 
reassuring advice to those that need it.  

 

This year, 865 
people came to us to 

use our Money 
Advice and 

Guidance Service, 
an increase of 58% 

on the 2016 figures. 

36%

24%

13%

9%

8%

3%

3%

2%
2%

Expenditure in Financial Support

Reduced Insufficient or Low Income (£910k)

Ill Health (£616k)

Relationship Breakdown (£341k)

Disability (£232k)

Bereavement (£210k)

Unsafe/Unstable Living Arrangements (£85k)

Poor Wellbeing (£64k)

Domestic Abuse (£56k)

Emergency Situation (£40k)
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Caring 
Carers’ Passports/Statements 
Our Carers’ Passport Scheme continues to provide support to employees in the Civil 
Service who have onerous caring responsibilities.  Carers’ Passports enable civil 
servants to continue to be valued employees, as well as to provide care for their loved 
ones.  We have now developed Carers’ Statements for use outside the workplace with 
healthcare professionals.  In 2017, we issued or amended over 1,900 Passports and 
Statements; an increase of 14.5% on 2016.  

Wellbeing 
Wellbeing Conversations 
In 2017, 313 people were referred to members of 
our trained regional team, who offer supportive 
wellbeing conversations, discussing support 
available and following up on the options 
discussed. Evaluation work is currently being 
undertaken to assess the impact of these 
intensive conversations. 

Mental Health First Aid 
Our most intensive offer is a two-day Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) course each 
month for CS Locals (a cross departmental team which is part of the Cabinet Office but 
based in the regions) to reach across Department staff that are not offered this. 

Through 9 courses, we trained 128 people from departments across the Civil Service.  

As part of the feedback, attendees are asked to rate their:  

 Knowledge and understanding of how to best support others with a mental 
health issue 

 Personal confidence in how to best support others with a mental health issue 
…before and then after the training. 

Both questions saw dramatic increases in scores, from an average of 3.56 before the 
two days of training to 7.44 afterwards. 

 

“It was such a turning 
point for me.” 

 

Robbie, Department for Transport 
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1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

Knowledge and Understanding Personal Confidence

Mental Health First Aid Training Evaluation
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Online Support 
Our wellbeing team was also involved in creating content for issue-led campaigns and 
updating the website. 

Part of this involved trialling an online Mindfulness course.  

605 places were allocated on this course in 2017.  At the point of starting, finishing and 
one month after completion, a set of three questions, designed to analyse someone’s 
stress, anxiety and depression, were asked of participants.  

The resulting change in these scores for each questionnaire is detailed below in the 
chart: 

 

Partners 
The Law Express App has proved popular achieving 782 
downloads.  On average, there were nearly 300 launches of 
the app each month.  In total, there have been 9,784 pages 
viewed and 67 calls were made to the Law Express phone 
line. 

We continue to work with Macmillan to create a better 
method of referral between our organisations where life-
limiting illness is concerned.  This has led to the provision 
of direct financial and practical support at critical 
moments when people are most in need, but least likely to 
think of the Charity.  

During our wellbeing conversations with people experiencing anxiety, stress or 
anxiety based depression, we offer Anxiety UK’s assessment to identify options for 
support. This is not available directly to individuals. 

 

“I spoke to someone from the 
Charity, who referred me to 
Anxiety UK. I felt supported 

throughout the whole process. 
Thanks to the Charity, I finally 

got my mojo back.” 
 

Antonia, Home Office 
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Get our Message Across – Better Engagement  
The drive to deliver more help to more people 
remains at the heart of our activity.  By listening to 
our different audiences throughout 2017, the 
Charity continues its programme of ‘test and learn’ 
for both service development and engagement 
activities.  

We continued to gather data, analyse results and 
conduct research, adapting and developing 
projects accordingly. Always led by our service 
offer, the five core elements of our approach to 
engagement (see below) continued to work well: 

 Issue-Led Campaigns 
 Community Engagement with Government 

Departments 
 Walking Challenge 
 Dynamic Content – deploying video and film 
 Volunteers/Advocates underpinning everything we do 

Issue-Led Campaigns 
Mental Wellbeing, Caring and Financial Capability are three big issues affecting civil 
servants, and therefore have huge resonance with our current and potential 
audiences.  ‘Help’ can also be provided in many different forms and issue-led 
campaigns have been fundamental in providing preventative ‘first steps’ help to 
larger numbers of our audiences.  

In 2017 these campaigns were multi-faceted: delivering help; increasing reach; 
deepening engagement; increasing understanding of who we are; increasing brand 
equity and allowing us to encourage people to ‘opt in’ and stay with us on a continuing 
supporter journey. 

Vice-Chair of Trustees Mark Addison CB, 
presenting volunteer Howard with his 
Certificate of Achievement this year. 
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Interactive web tools (the budget calculator, 
stress test and carers test) offered something 
of true value to our audiences, which drew 
people to the website and in turn deepened 
their engagement with our brand. 
Partnerships with credible charities merited 
the investment to boost our credibility with 
our audiences across specific issues and 
amplified our message by tying in with 
specific national charity days. We will build 
on this foundation in 2018.  

 

Community Engagement with Government Departments 
Last year we trialled partnership working with specific government departments, 
starting with DWP, HMRC and Northern Ireland. The results were positive with 
increased engagement, increased numbers of people receiving help, and increasing 
numbers of participants in the Walking Challenge.  So we will be continuing with this 
way of working for 2018 and exploring other departmental links.  

The role of our ‘face to face’ presence in workplaces has been changing.  Our regional 
staff now raise awareness of services, signpost individuals towards appropriate help, 
activate volunteers and, lastly, fundraise through donor recruitment.  

Charity staff saw a total of 23,333 members of our lifelong community at 670 events 
in 2017 in at least 355 different locations. 

Volunteers and advocates also represented the Charity at a further 565 workplace 
wellbeing and staff events. 

 

 

 

 

 

“I’m constantly telling people about 
how the Charity can support carers 
within our Civil Service community 

– don’t be afraid to ask for help.” 
 

Nuswrat, DWP 

 Our HMRC winners at the Volunteer Awards 2017. 
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And we introduced 18 Wellbeing Rooms in HMRC across the UK. 

 

Walking Challenge 
The Charity’s Walking Challenge had more 
participants than ever and 3,083 registered 
participants walked over 420,176 miles over the 50 
days, that’s the equivalent of walking nearly 17 
times around the world. 

It was also excellent to see that 79% of the people 
taking our Pre-Walking Challenge survey said they 
were joining the Challenge for the first time, 
meaning we were reaching new people.  

Our walkers, through sponsorship and registration 
fees, generated over £60,000 and also saw positive 
wellbeing and physical changes due to their 
participation in the Challenge.  

 

 

“I signed up to do The Walking 
Challenge a few years ago and 
again now because I want to do 

something good for other 
people and to help myself get a 

little bit fitter.” 
 

Karen, MoJ 
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In The Walking Challenge pre and post-event surveys: 

 97% of people said they intended to keep up their activity levels after the 
Challenge ended; and 

 People saying they were “Not Very Fit” dropped by 23% in the post-event survey 
and “Reasonably fit” increased by 8%:  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Each of the standard “Wellbeing Questions” saw an improvement, showing that the 
Walking Challenge is instrumental in improving the wellbeing of participants: 

 Overall how satisfied with your life nowadays, went up by 6% 
 Overall […] the things you do in your life are worthwhile, went up by 7% 
 How happy did you feel yesterday, went up by 8% 
 How anxious did you feel yesterday, went down by 14% 

Dynamic Content 
This year, we’ve really branched out in our creative 
content, including film: 

 9 new films (ranging from 4 minutes to 10 
seconds in length) 
 

 A total of 412,200 views on social media and 
2,506 views on YouTube across all films in 2017 
 

 Deirdre’s film (pictured right) received a total of 
24,559 views across Facebook, Twitter and 
YouTube  

You can watch Deirdre’s film at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=44SHCrnscGo. 

How would you categorise your current level of fitness now? 

  

30%

39%

31%

Pre-Event Survey

28%

47%

8%

17%

Post-Event Survey

Physically fit

Reasonably fit

Not very fit

Fitter than I was

All registered walkers were invited to participate in both surveys - the samples are not the same. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=44SHCrnscGo
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Volunteers 
Volunteers amplify our voice and underpin everything we do. In 2017 we saw a 50% 
increase in the volunteer population for 
the Charity going from 221 to 333 active 
volunteers.  

We consolidated each of the different 
volunteer roles into one, making it much 
simpler for potential supporters to become 
engaged and take part in engagement and 
promotion activity to whatever level of 
commitment they can make. This allows 
them to balance their interest in volunteering with the demands of their paid role 
within the Civil Service. 

One of the main activities in which our volunteers take part is representing the 
Charity at wellbeing and staff events in workplaces.  Requests received from 
workplaces for the Charity to feature in these events has increased by 78% with 368 
requests received for materials, 129 stands delivered and 68 talks given, totalling 565 

events. 

Volunteers continue to carry out some 
home visits on our behalf, usually 
when an assessment of house repairs is 
required.  They also offer telephone 
support with Carers Passport 
applications and user testing of IT 
tools, website forms and trialling new 
initiatives.  

 

Fundraising Activities in 2017 
We raise money across a range of income 
streams including face-to-face, community 
fundraising and regular giving. We aim to 
provide our community with a choice of how 
to support the Charity and will begin to 
explore contactless giving and text 
donations in 2018. 

In 2017, the regional team saw over 20,000 
staff with 18% of these individuals 
completing a donor form.  Out of these, 65% 
(2,425 people) were new donors to the 
Charity, 13% of them (474) were existing 
donors increasing their current donation 
and the remainder were making changes to 
an existing donation. 

 

“It has such a positive effect 
on my mental health.” 

 

Natalie, a Volunteer at MoJ 

 

“The more people I can reach 
volunteering, the better. If I can help 
just one person, then it’s worth it.” 

 

Carole, a Volunteer at Land Registry 

Pictured, our DWP Volunteer Award Winners, left 
to right: Jean, Vera and Lesley. 
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In Community Fundraising, we held 2 Prize Draws in the Spring and Autumn, which 
generated a combined total of £51,876 (£33,875 ticket sales and £18,001 in donations). 

Fundraising Events, including the British London 10K run, one-off fundraising and 
annual Get Yellow Activity Week generated £28,229. 

We have seen an uptake of the National Free Wills Network service, with 119 wills 
written in 2017.  Out of these, 48 have left a pecuniary pledge to the Charity, totalling 
nearly £14,000, and one residuary pledge of 10%.   

 

Our Fundraising Approach 
Recent scrutiny of fundraising activities by the media and the Information 
Commissioner’s Office has dented public trust in the charity sector generally. We are 
proud to say that we put our supporters at the heart of everything that we do. This 
approach is clearly valued by our supporters and our trust levels remain strong.   

In accordance with this approach, we are registered with the Fundraising Regulator 
and adhere to the Code of Fundraising Practice when carrying out our fundraising 
activities. 

To ensure and maintain this good practice, we regularly monitor fundraising 
activities which includes shadowing of face to face fundraisers and reviewing phone 
calls.  As we are recent members of the Direct Marketing Association, we are now 
additionally checking all print and digital materials with them.  We also conduct 
regular questionnaires with our supporters to evidence satisfaction and discover 
potential areas to improve.  

Our fundraising approach has included the following activities: 

 Direct marketing: Communicating by email or post with regular donors, 
volunteers, fundraisers and people we help to ensure they are aware of our 
services and offer them opportunities to support us.  

 Face to face: Visiting Civil Service offices to run awareness raising 
presentations and allowing people to make one off donations or sign up as a 
regular giver.  

 Community and events: Facilitating fundraising activity where people make 
donations as a result of participating in events such as runs, walks and other 
sponsored activities, or organise local community fundraising events such as 
cake sales.  

 Legacy giving: Working with people who are choosing us as a beneficiary when 
they are planning their will. 

 Spring and Autumn Prize Draws: People can buy tickets from the Charity for 
the chance to win a cash prize. 
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Fundraising Standards, contacting our supporters and supervising our fundraisers 

The Charity for Civil Servants prides itself on a high standard of ethical fundraising 
and we continually review how we ask for support in order to meet our own high 
standards. The Charity is moving to adopt opt-in communications in line with existing 
and forthcoming regulation and is working with staff to ensure they understand the 
responsibilities and implications. 

The Charity’s own staff carry out all fundraising activities. While we do occasionally 
work with specialists for advice and support, we do not employ external agencies to 
carry out professional fundraising on our behalf. Therefore, at this time we do not 
have a requirement for oversight, or monitoring processing of fundraising third 
parties. If the situation should change we are aware of the requirement to implement 
appropriate monitoring approaches to protect donors, supporters and the Charity.  
The Charity is satisfied we are compliant with all current standards. 

Future funding policy and approach  

Having identified some risks to its long term income-generation model, namely a 
reduction in the numbers of Civil Service staff and an ageing donor database, the 
Charity has implemented a five-year strategy which aims to re-engage our existing 
donors and diversify our income strategy.  We will develop a new donor journey 
strategy with recruitment and retention campaigns that build connected 
relationships and reconnect with the wider community.  We ran regular issue-led 
campaigns in 2017 and propose to do the same in 2018 to target different audiences 
across the Civil Service community and raise awareness of our services and how 
people can support each other through the Charity.  

 
Protecting our money, reputation and other assets 

As a charity, gaining supporters’ trust is incredibly important and the Charity must 
demonstrate that it is a responsible and worthy recipient of supporters’ generous 
donations. We work to ensure that we manage our money and other assets responsibly 
and do all we can to maintain a good reputation by being transparent and trustworthy. 
The Charity takes its responsibility for managing supporters’ donations very seriously 
and applies rigorous financial controls to ensure funds are monitored, tracked and we 
conduct regular and voluntary internal and external audits of our processes. The 
Charity strives to make the supporter journey as easy as possible so that it suits 
individuals.  

 
Protecting those who are vulnerable 

The Charity takes its responsibility to anyone who might be vulnerable very seriously.  
Our Supporter Care team are trained to deal sensitively and appropriately with 
individuals who may be vulnerable.  In line with the recent guidance, we are reviewing 
our guidance and training with our fundraising staff to ensure best practice.  
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Complying with fundraising laws & regulation and compliance with recognised 
standards  

The Charity is registered with the Fundraising Regulator and is a member of the 
Institute of Fundraising and the Direct Marketing Association. We recognise that 
Fundraising Laws have changed and are working hard to ensure that regulation and 
practices are implemented and kept up to date and will be reviewing policies and 
practices on a quarterly basis. The Fundraising Managers are responsible for ensuring 
they are compliant with the standards laid out in the Fundraising Regulators’ 
Fundraising Code of Practice with the overall accountability for such compliance 
sitting with the Director of Marketing and Audience Engagement. 

 
Open and Accountable 

The Charity works hard to be open and accountable and to ensure that supporters 
understand how money will be used. We make sure our supporters receive our impact 
report and will communicate with them on a regular basis to ensure they are informed 
about the services that they help to support.  

 

Complaints and Negative feedback   

We operate a clear and stringent complaints and compliments handling procedure 
that is reported regularly to the Senior Management team and the Board of Trustees. 
We are mindful of protecting civil servants, including vulnerable people, from 
unreasonably intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches.  Of the estimated 
80,000 people we have engaged with in relation to our direct fundraising activities in 
2017, we have received no complaints.  Any complaints received are taken seriously 
and followed up in order to assuage the concerns of our supporters and so that we can 
continually improve our practices through learning.   

 

Sustainability - Financial Review 
Overview 
In 2017, the Charity recorded a net income of £964k (2016: £2,001k), which included a 
gain on the revaluation and disposal of investments of £2,412k (2016: £2,443k gain). 

Investment income was £0.8m (2016: £1.1m) and the portfolio’s overall return for 2017 
was 7.8% (7.6% net of fees), above the objective for the year of 7.2%. The Charity 
withdrew £2.8m (2016: £1.2m) from its investment fund during the year to help fund 
its operations. 

Net assets at the year end were £42.8m, up £2.1m on 2016 (£40.7m); due to an increase 
of £0.5m in the value of investment assets and a decrease in the value of the defined 
benefit pension scheme liability of £1.6m. 
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Income  
In 2017 total income was £6.7m, down £0.3m as a result of lower investment income. 
The increase in the donation from CSIS Charity Fund by £0.1m and in legacy income 
of £0.2m off-set the reduction of £0.3m in regular contributions.  

The key breakdown of income is shown in the pie-chart below.  

 
 
The principal source of the Charity’s income remains regular monthly contributions 
from individuals, both serving and retired civil servants.  Together with gift aid, this 
source of income accounted for 73% of the Charity’s total income. At £4.9m, 
contributions are down £0.3m on the previous year, reflecting a net 5% decline in the 
number of regular donors offset by an uplift in the average amount of existing 
donations. 

Contributions from employer organisations amounted to £111k (2016: £152k) mainly 
made up of an annual grant from the Cabinet Office of £110k. 

Income from investments was £0.8m (2016: £1.1m), reflecting interest and dividends 
from the Charity’s multi-asset investment portfolio managed by Barings Asset 
Management. 

Income from legacies, which is highly unpredictable, amounted to £396k in the year 
(2016: £185k). 

Donations totalled £320k, up on 2016 (2016: £200k) including £260k (2016: £135k) 
from CSIS and its Charity Fund and £4k from the London Regional Committee. 

4918

817

396

320

111 153

Income by Source (£ thousands)

Regular Contributions From Individuals (73%)

Investment Income (12%)

Legacies (6%)

Donations (5%)

From Employer Organisations (2%)

Other (2%)

Total: 6,715
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Expenditure 
Total expenditure for the year is £8.2m (2016: £7.4m) with £6.2m being spent on 
charitable activities. For every £1 the Charity spends, 76 pence goes to help those who 
need it, reflecting the financial support provided, direct charitable activities and their 
relevant support costs.  

Costs of raising funds were £2.0m (2016: £2.1m) and included elements of staff costs, 
investment management fees and overheads. 

Total staff costs of £3.7m (2016: £3.3m) were included within direct activities and 
support costs. The average number of staff (on a full-time equivalent basis) in 2017 
was 87 (2016: 78). 

Investments 
The Charity’s powers of investment are set out in the Memorandum & Articles of 
Association.  The Board of Trustees has delegated authority to manage the Charity’s 
portfolio of investments to the Investment Committee of the Board of Trustees. 

The investment portfolio is managed by Barings Asset Management Limited 
(“Barings”).  The manager’s performance is monitored quarterly against various 
indices.  The Northern Trust Company undertakes custodian functions for the 
portfolio.  Movements in the Charity’s holdings of investments during the year and an 
analysis of the portfolio at year-end are shown in note 9a to the Accounts.   

Barings operate under a mandate which seeks to optimise the portfolio’s returns while 
controlling risk.  Risk is spread by investing across a broad range of business sectors 
and markets throughout the world.  The agreement signed with Barings in 2016 sets 
an investment objective to achieve a net return of RPI plus 3.5% p.a. over rolling three-
year periods with the aim of delivering returns equivalent to long-term equity returns 
within 70% of realised equity volatility, over a medium to long term time horizon.  
Barings have discretion as to asset allocation within agreed ranges for each asset class, 
whilst stock selection is accomplished by using a combination of tracker and active 
funds.  The net return in 2017 was 7.6% (2016: net 8.5%) compared with an investment 
objective of 7.2%.  The net return for the three years to 31 December 2017 was 5.9% 
(three years to 31 December 2016: net 5.3%) compared with a benchmark of 6.2%. 

The Charity has selected an Investment Manager to manage its assets in accordance 
with its agreed asset allocation.  The Investment 
Manager’s approach is to invest primarily in existing 
pooled funds some of which track indices rather than 
select individual stocks.  As a result the Charity does 
not directly exclude underlying stocks on the grounds 
of social, environmental and other ethical grounds. 

From time to time, the investment managers of 
underlying funds provide the trustees with details of 
their corporate governance statements including their 
voting policies and a record of their engagement 
activities with companies.  The Investment Committee 
reviews their policies periodically. 

 

“I was absolutely distraught 
over paying for my 

husband’s funeral. You took 
that worry away. I would 

love to become a volunteer 
and help others in need.” 

 

Anon. someone we helped. 
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Reserves 
The trustees are mindful of their duty to balance the interests of both current and 
future beneficiaries.  The holding of reserves is one of a range of measures that can 
contribute to stability and continuity of the Charity into the future.  The trustees 
determine the need for reserves by reference to a number of factors which they keep 
under regular review, including recent reductions in Civil Service staffing, its impact 
on future donations, fluctuations in beneficiary expenditure and future levels of 
demand for the Charity’s services.  Based on its current analysis, the trustees feel that 
the Charity should retain reserves of between 3 to 4.5 times annual recurring 
expenditure. 

Of the Charity’s total funds of £42.8m, total unrestricted funds were £42.6m at 31 
December 2017.  In assessing our level of free reserves, the fixed assets fund of £0.8m 
are excluded as these assets cannot be quickly disposed of.  This leaves free reserves of 
£41.8m, which represents 5.1 times expenditure in 2017, including on-going pension 
costs, compared to the target range of 3 to 4.5 times.  The trustees expect reserves to 
decline over the next five years as we develop the Charity’s services to help more 
people in line with the strategy that was developed in 2016. 

Restricted reserves – which are not taken into account in formulating the Charity’s 
reserves policy – were £0.2m as at 31 December 2017, details of which are set out in 
note 13 to the accounts. 

After making enquiries, the trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Charity 
has adequate resources to continue its activities for the foreseeable future. 

 

Pensions 
The Charity participates in a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme, The 
CSBF Pension & Assurance Scheme, which was closed to future accrual in 2004.  The 
Charity accounts for its 94.05% share of the net assets and liabilities of the multi-
employer pension scheme which is recognised on the Charity’s balance sheet.    

 

Risks and Uncertainties  
The Board and managers review and update the schedule of major risks facing the 
Charity at least annually and the management team completes the schedule by 
identifying the likelihood, potential damage and preventive measures, adopted or 
planned, to mitigate each risk together with any countermeasures that might be 
appropriate, should the risk materialise.  The Finance and Audit Committee considers 
in detail the resultant schedule and its conclusions are submitted to the Board, which 
endorses a final register of major risks; any financial implications are incorporated 
into the annual budget process.  

The Board is satisfied that the major risks facing the Charity have been identified and 
are being appropriately addressed.  In particular, the Board considers that the key 
risks currently facing the Charity are as follows: 
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 A prolonged and severe deterioration in certain external trends such as the 
economic environment and the size of the Civil Service audience could threaten 
the longer term future of the Charity.  Although external trends cannot be directly 
influenced by the Charity, the Charity regularly reviews the effectiveness of its 
strategic direction.  It is building deeper stronger relationships with its 
community.  This will improve the Charity’s understanding of how best to give 
more help and support which will in turn mean that more people will see the 
difference the Charity makes.  
 

 Although the average size of donation has increased over the last decade, the 
Charity has seen a decline in the number of regular donors, and income from 
regular donations has fallen over the same period.  Focused interaction with major 
Civil Service departments will drive employee engagement with the Charity and 
aims to reverse the trend of declining income.  The Board is conscious that these 
efforts will take time to pay off and trends will take a while to reverse. 

 

Whilst the above risks have had some impact on the Charity’s net income, the Charity 
currently remains in a strong financial position. 

 

Remuneration Policy 
Our approach to pay at The Charity  

The Charity had 96 staff as at 31 December 2017, which equates to 87 full-time 
equivalent employees. Salaries and total reward for the Senior Management Team – 
the Chief Executive and the three other directors responsible for Finance & Corporate 
Services, Help & Advisory Services and Marketing & Audience Engagement – are set 
and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, a sub-committee of our Board of 
trustees. 

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by the Charity’s chair and includes other 
members of the Board, who offer pay expertise in the Not for Profit and other sectors. 

All other staff salaries are set by the Senior Management Team.  Salaries are arranged 
in pay bands across the Charity, using external independent benchmarking and 
comparison data within the charity and Not for Profit sector, and taking into account 
affordability at the Charity.  Salaries are clearly advertised when recruiting for new 
roles. At the Charity, we believe in recruiting and retaining high-calibre people to 
represent its interests.  We also believe in rewarding staff fairly for the jobs that they 
do and providing a single streamlined salary and grading framework for all staff, 
which is equitable and consistent with the principle of equal pay for work of equal 
value.  We believe this engenders a positive working environment. Additionally, we 
believe in encouraging young people to enter the workplace to increase their skills and 
establish their careers.  We provide apprenticeships in some specialist areas and 
ensure that they are rewarded fairly for their work with pay and benefits. 

The Charity works hard to retain staff who have been recruited for the specific skills 
that they bring to their particular role.  Pay and reward are determined to ensure that 
we can recruit people with the right skills in a competitive market.  Many of our staff 
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have detailed knowledge, some of which is unique to the Charity and could not be 
easily replaced. Our staff pay scales and total reward package reflects our 
commitment to retaining and motivating our staff. 

 

Senior Management Pay  

The Charity’s purpose and vision means that the Chief Executive and other members 
of the Senior Management Team require a breadth of experience, skills and personal 
qualities on a par with high-quality senior-level talent in similar organisations and so 
the Charity needs to be competitive in the market.  They need to be able to liaise and 
command the respect of senior civil servants and executives of other partnership 
charities of all sizes through their experience and credibility.  At the Charity, we are 
able to retain this talent whilst keeping salary costs under control. 

For the purposes of disclosures under the Charities SORP (FRS 102), senior 
management is defined as the Chief Executive Officer and the other three directors 
responsible for Finance & Corporate Services, Help & Advisory Services and Marketing 
& Audience Engagement. 

 

Benchmarking 

The Senior Management Team’s salaries are externally benchmarked every 5 years 
and staff pay levels are reviewed annually. 

Each year, the Chief Executive and directors participate in performance appraisal as 
part of the appraisal scheme operated for all of the Charity’s staff.   In the case of the 
Chief Executive, this includes seeking detailed feedback from the Chair, Trustees, and 
direct reports. 

Staff pay is reviewed by the Senior Management Team and communicated to the 
Charity’s recognised union, PCS.  The same benefits, apart from annual leave 
allowance, including pensions and terms and conditions, apply to the Chief Executive 
and directors, as all other staff. 

While they are separately determined, annual pay increases for the Chief Executive, 
directors and staff have been aligned for the three years leading up to 2017.  In 2017, a 
1.5% pay increase was awarded to both the senior management team and staff. 

 

Living Wage Foundation 

In 2017, the Charity joined the Living Wage Foundation, which means the Charity must 
pay all staff the National Living Wage (Greater London £10.20 per hour, Rest of UK        
£8.45 per hour).  It also promotes this basic wage to all of its contactors that fit the 
criteria of working on site for a specified number of hours per week.  The National 
Living wage increases every year usually in the month of November. 

Although the Charity already pays its staff more than the London Living Wage, it will 
mean an increased cost to the Charity for its subcontracted/outsourced cleaning 
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contractors amounting to £4,037 plus VAT per annum (starting 2018). The only cost 
attributed in 2017 was the £240 licence fee. 

 

Gender Pay Reporting 

As the Charity employs fewer than 250 employees, it is not required to publish 
information on Gender Pay Reporting.  Nevertheless, as recommended by the NCVO, 
the trustees requested information on gender pay differences to be collated and are 
providing this information as part of a commitment to transparency and 
accountability. 

The data below relates to April 2017: 

Gender Number of 
staff 

FTE 
Salary 

Differential FTE 
Salary 

Differential 

  Mean (£) (%) Median (£) (%) 
Male 25 £33,889 £-374 -1.1% £32,736 £317 0.9% 
Female 66 £34,263 £32,419 

 

Note: Overall male:female ratio is 3:7 

Percentage Gender per Quartile Salary Range (1 = highest paid quartile) 

Salary Quartile Male Female 
1 22% 78% 
2 36% 64% 
3 13% 87% 
4 39% 61% 

 

 

 

Plans for the Future 
Going Forward into 2018 

Service Evolution 
Our service goals for 2018 are 

 People continue to approach the Charity for help around 40,000 times; 
 Within this, the Charity receives more than 10,500 applications; 
 At least 12,000 pieces of digital help are downloaded; and 
 The amount of financial help the Charity provides increases by at least 10%. 

During 2018, our engagement approach and services will evolve in line with the 
Charity’s strategy and strategic goals. 
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Through 2018 we will use: 

 insight from increased and different forms of engagement in workplaces that were 
successful in 2017; 

 insight and analysis from our applications for help, website activity and issue-led 
campaigns;  

 learning from our evaluation – an example is the development of Carers’ 
Statements and the Carer’s Emergency Plan.  Learning from our evaluation of 
Carers’ Passports highlighted needs outside the workplace which are not being 
addressed; and 

 a range of formats and channels for providing help to more people, for example our 
animated film about financial capability that can be used in sections or in full, and 
be accompanied with an expert advice session or used on its own. 

In 2018, our approach to planning and developing new and existing services will be 
project-based to enable outcome measurement.  User testing will be critical, ensuring 
the continuous development of money, caring, health and wellbeing services to 
establish best fit and best value services and products. We will work with trusted 
suppliers such as Law Express and Anxiety UK 
where it is not appropriate to offer in-house 
expertise and resources. We will continue to 
monitor our financial help to better understand 
circumstance and need. 

The Civil Service is a changing community in 
terms of demographics, roles and skillsets.  We 
will position our Help and Advice Service to cater 
for the different ways people want to give and 
receive information, advice and help as 
technologies change. Our website and social 
media will increasingly be used as channels of self-service help, with tools and 
resources for people who may be time poor, seek 24/7 resources or prefer accessing 
help without (or before) asking for it. 

In exploring future needs of the Charity’s main database system, we will be seeking to 
ensure integration of data, (email, web account, web chat and phone calls) within the 
system to enable us to respond to people in a range of channels whilst recording and 
reporting on these channels, also bearing in mind General Data Protection Regulation 
(GDPR) compliance. 

 

Engagement and Sustainability 
Our aim for 2018 will be to use our consolidated learning from 2017 in order to further 
increase our reach with serving, former and retired civil servants and deepen our 
engagement with our key audiences of donors, fundraisers, volunteers, advocates and 
people we support.  

 

“After the worst year of my life, 
your support has helped put me 

in a much better position, 
moving into this year.” 

 

Anon. Someone we helped. 
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We will continue with our integrated issue-led engagement with three campaigns 
focusing on Financial Capability, Mental Wellbeing and Caring - creating awareness 
of our services and allowing us to begin a journey with new supporters and over time, 
encouraging people to help us with their time and/or money. 

As part of these campaigns, we will showcase innovative new services that we have 
developed, such as our new 25-minute financial capability animation.  

With charitable giving trends shifting across the sector, we will be looking at 
reinvigorating our relationship with our donors and developing a five-year income 
generation strategy that enables the Charity to remain sustainable by diversifying 
and amalgamating all its income streams and responding to our audiences’ need for 
easy and accessible ways to give.  

We will continue our work to build relationships with individual departments and our 
goal is to see an increase in giving in departments where we focus our engagement 
activity.  We also aim to attract at least 3,700 civil servants to take part in our annual 
Walking Challenge. 

We also intend to improve the Charity’s engagement with its audience of retired and 
former civil servants. 

Our volunteers remain crucial to the Charity’s success in delivering more help to more 
people. We now have 333 fully trained volunteers who are spreading the word for us 
every day through social media, in offices, through networks and by their presence at 
events. We couldn’t do what we do without them.  
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Trustees’ Administrative Report 

Structure and Governance 
Constitution and Membership 

The Civil Service Benevolent Fund (“The Charity”) was incorporated on 16th June 2010 
as a company limited by guarantee (company no. 7286399).  In May 2012, the company 
began operating under the name “The Charity for Civil Servants”.  The Charity is 
registered with the Charity Commission in England and Wales (no. 1136870) and is on 
the Scottish Charity Register (no.  SC041956).  The Charity carries out its activities 
from its principal office, No. 5 Anne Boleyn’s Walk, Cheam, Surrey, SM3 8DY, which is 
also its registered office. 

The governing instrument of The Charity is the Articles of Association which were 
adopted on 16th June 2010.  

The Charity’s Patron is Her Majesty the Queen; its president is Sir Jeremy Heywood; 
and its Honorary Vice President is Lord Gus O’Donnell KCB GCB.  

Trustees and Advisors 

The Charity is governed by a trustee Board of between 8 and 12 trustees.  Under the 
Charity’s Articles of Association, one trustee shall be appointed by the Cabinet Office 
and that trustee will be the Chair.  Other trustees are appointed by resolution of the 
trustees at AGM.  The Board is currently comprised of 11 trustees and recruitment for 
a 12th trustee is underway.  

The following trustees served as members of the Board throughout 2017 and were 
trustees on the date this report was approved:   

Sue Owen CB (Chair), Mark Addison CB (Vice-Chair), Vivienne Dews (Treasurer), Barry 
Burton, Mary Aiston CB, Kevin Sadler CBE, Jonathan Russell CB, Deborah Loudon, 
Wendy Proctor, Maria Clohessy and Selvin Brown MBE. 

The following trustee retired on 16th June 2017: 

Stephen Rimmer CB 

No trustees were appointed during 2017. 

There were no trustees appointed after the year end. 

No trustees had any disclosable interests under the Companies Act 2006. 

Trustees are responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the 
Board, including the skills, knowledge and experience required.  Trustees seek to 
identify candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise and open 
advertising or the services of external advisers are always considered to facilitate the 
search for suitable candidates.  Trustees are appointed for an initial term of up to three 
years, in order to provide for an orderly succession, and are eligible to serve a second 
term, up to a maximum of six years.  Trustees receive individual induction sessions, 
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as well as being provided with relevant background information to help familiarise 
them with their responsibilities. 

The trustee Board meets a minimum of three times a year and takes all important 
strategic, policy and financial decisions.  It met four times in 2017.  The Board is 
supported by a number of sub-committees and advisory groups.   

Sub-committee and advisory group membership as at 31st December 2017 is set out 
below (* denotes chair of each committee, † denotes co-opted member): 

 

Nominations 
Committee 
& Remuneration 
Committee 
 

Investment 
Committee 

Finance & Audit 
Committee 

Strategic Steering 
Group 

Sue Owen * Mark Addison * Vivienne Dews * Mary Aiston 
Vivienne Dews Kevin Sadler Jonathan Russell Jonathan Russell 
Deborah Loudon 
Wendy Proctor 
 

Chris Jones † 
Michael Harrison† 
Vivienne Dews 
Maria Clohessy 

Mark Addison 
Maria Clohessy 

Wendy Proctor 
 

 

Day-to-day management of The Charity is delegated to the Chief Executive, Graham 
Hooper, and other directors responsible for Finance & Corporate Services, Help & 
Advisory Services, and Marketing and Audience Engagement.  An appropriate 
director acts as secretary to each of the Board sub-committees and advisory 
committees, except for the Nominations Committee & Remuneration Committee for 
which the Head of HR and Training is secretary. 

 

The key advisers to The Charity are: 

Auditors:     Bankers: 

Crowe Clark Whitehill LLP   Lloyds TSB Bank plc 

St Bride's House     1 Butler Place 

10 Salisbury Square     Victoria Street 

London EC4Y 8EH     London SW1H 0PR 

 
Investment Managers:    Solicitors: 

Baring Asset Management Limited  Stone King  

155 Bishopsgate     16 St John’s Lane 

London EC2M 3XY     London EC1M 4BS 
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Objectives & Activities 
The Charity’s objects are:    
  

“to relieve from suffering, hardship or distress (whether financial or otherwise) for 
the public benefit persons who are Civil Servants, former Civil Servants, Public 
Body Employees or former Public Body Employees, employees and former 
employees of the Charity (and any predecessor organisation of it) and their 
dependants, in particular by providing grants in money or kind, either directly to 
them or to an organisation that will provide relief to them, and by providing advice 
or other assistance.” 

The vision of The Charity for Civil Servants is a lifelong community; people offering 
effective support for each other when life takes a turn for the worse.  Our mission is 
to support all civil servants, past and present, throughout their lives, with whatever 
problems they may have. 

The Charity aims to help people with the vast range of issues they encounter and 
achieves this by providing direct financial help in the form of grants and allowances, 
as well as advice, guidance and signposting, and also by working with other charities 
and statutory providers where appropriate. 

Given the large number of serving and former civil servants and now public body 
employees (and their dependants) that fall under the Charity’s remit, the trustees are 
satisfied that the Charity is providing public benefit under the Charities Act 2011.  
They are also satisfied that they have had due regard to the public benefit guidance 
published by the Charity Commission and in particular the requirement that The 
Charity benefits a sufficient section of the public. 

We regularly review our aims, objectives and activities, and in doing so evaluate the 
appropriateness and effectiveness of our services.  As a result of these reviews, we 
have continued to develop The Charity’s offerings, details of which are outlined in the 
Trustees’ Strategic Report. 

 

Trustee Responsibilities 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report (which comprises the 
Trustees’ Administrative Report and the Trustees’ Strategic Report) and the accounts 
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.  Charity law requires the trustees 
to prepare financial statements for each financial year in accordance with United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards) and applicable law.  Under company law the trustees must not approve the 
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its net incoming resources for that 
period.  In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
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 Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
 State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is 

inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business. 
 

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient 
to show and explain the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and 
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 
2006.  They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of The Charity and hence 
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.   

Insofar as each of the trustees of the charitable company at the date of approval of 
this report is aware there is no relevant audit information (information needed by the 
company’s auditor in connection with preparing the audit report) of which the 
company’s auditor is unaware.  Each trustee has taken all of the steps that he/she 
should have taken as a trustee in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that 
information.   

 

Charity Governance Code 
Since the Charity Governance Code was launched on the 13th July 2017, the Charity for 
Civil Servants has utilised the Code as a tool to support the Board to reflect upon its 
current governance structures and consider the ways in which the Charity and its 
trustees currently apply the Charity Governance Code’s seven principles and 
recommended practice. 
 
The Charity’s trustees acknowledge that The Charity for Civil Servants is best placed 
to fulfil its vision, mission and strategic goals if it has effective governance in place.  
To date, the Charity’s Board has established a solid foundation in governance in which 
all of its members are clear about their legal responsibilities as trustees.  The Board, 
which continues to uphold the Nolan principles, recognises that behaviour and 
culture are also integral in supporting the Charity to deliver its objects most 
effectively for its beneficiaries’ benefit, contributing to the Charity’s continued 
improvement and achieving good governance. 
 
The Charity for Civil Servants already has a number of the Code’s measures in place.  
These include clear and accountable trustee term-limits within the Charity’s Articles 
of Association which state no trustee can serve more than two three-year terms, an 
explicit statement regarding the size of the Charity’s Board, which shall consist of a 
minimum of 8 and a maximum of 12 trustees (the Charity’s Board currently consists 
of 11 trustees; recruitment for a 12th trustee is underway) and ongoing reviews of the 
Board’s performance including an external review of the Board every three years. 
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Whilst The Charity for Civil Servants already applies a considerable number of the 
recommended practices relating to each of the Charity Governance Code’s seven 
principles, the Charity and its trustees have taken the time to consider the ways in 
which it can aspire to adopt the Code over the coming months to further improve the 
Charity’s governance standards and increase its overall effectiveness as an 
organisation. 
 

This Annual Report, which incorporates the Trustees’ Strategic Report and 
Administrative Report, was approved by the Trustees on 27 April 2018, and signed on 
their behalf by: 

 

 

 

Sue Owen 

Chair, Board of Trustees 

27 April 2018 
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Trustees and 
Members of The Charity for Civil Servants 

OPINION 

We have audited the financial statements of The Charity for Civil Servants for the year 
ended 31 December 2017 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the 
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in 
accordance with Chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, and to the charitable 
company’s trustees, as a body, in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Charities 
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the charitable company’s members and trustees those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the charitable company, the charitable company’s members as a body and the 
charitable company’s trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 
31 December 2017 and of its incoming resources and application of resources 
for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
2006, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and Regulation 
8 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. 

 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) 
(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
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CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 
ISAs (UK) require  us to report to you where: 

 the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is not appropriate; or 

 the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the charitable company’s 
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of 
at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised 
for issue. 

 

OTHER INFORMATION 

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements 
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact.  

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 

In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit  

 the information given in the trustees’ report, which includes the directors’ 
report and the strategic report prepared for the purposes of company law, for 
the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent 
with the financial statements; and 

 the strategic report and the directors’ report included within the trustees’ 
report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 
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MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION 

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material 
misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report included within the 
trustees’ report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 
Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 require 
us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 adequate and proper accounting records have not been kept; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 
returns; or 

 certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our 
audit. 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES 

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on pages 28-
29, the trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes 
of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and 
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as 
the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the 
charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have been appointed as auditor under section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee 
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and under the Companies Act 2006 and report in 
accordance with the Acts and relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder. 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:  

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  

This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

 

 
 

Nicola May 

Senior Statutory Auditor 

For and on behalf of 

Crowe Clark Whitehill LLP 

Statutory Auditor 

London 

 

Date  
Crowe Clark Whitehill LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006. 

https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Unrestricted 

Funds 
Restricted 

Funds 

2017 
Total  

Funds   

2016 
Total 

Funds 
Income from Note £000 £000 £000 £000 
Donations and legacies 

        
   Regular contributions from individuals  4,918  -  4,918  5,220 

 Contributions from employer organisations  111  -  111  152 

 Legacies   396  -  396  185 

 Donations  320  -  320  200 

     CSBF Enterprises Limited – profits donated 9b 3  -  3  15 

Fundraising events   125  -  125  108 

Other income  25  -  25  19 

Investments 2 817  -  817  1,084 

Total income  6,715  -  6,715  6,983 

 

Expenditure on         
Raising funds 

        
Fundraising & Engagement 

 
1,827 

 
- 

 1,827  2,000 

Investment management 
 

144  -  144  125 

Total costs of raising funds 
 

1,971  -  1,971  2,125 

Charitable activities 
        

 Alleviating need 
 

6,153  39  6,192  5,300 

Total charitable expenditure  6,153  39  6,192  5,300 

Total expenditure 3 8,124  39  8,163  7,425 

Net gains on investments 9a 2,412    2,412  2,443 

Net income/(expenditure)  1,003  (39)  964  2,001 

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit pension 
scheme 15 1,131  -  1,131  (2,459) 

Net movement in funds for the year  2,134  (39)  2,095  (458) 

         

Reconciliation of funds         

Funds brought forward at 1 January 2017  40,451  226  40,677  41,135 

Funds carried forward at 31 December 2017  42,585  187  42,772  40,677 

 
The statement of financial activities incorporates an income and expenditure account. 
 
The notes on pages 38 to 58 form an integral part of these Accounts 
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2017 

 
2016  

  Total  Total 
     

  Note £000  £000 

Fixed assets     
Intangible assets 7 10  - 
Tangible assets 8 817  805 
Investment assets 9a 43,180  42,721 

Total fixed assets  44,007  43,526 

     
Current assets     
Debtors  10 701  729 
Cash at bank and in hand  541  243 

Total current assets  1,242  972 

     
Liabilities     
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 11 (571)  (334) 

Net current assets   671  638 

Total assets less current liabilities  44,678  44,164 

Net assets excluding pension liability  44,678  44,164 

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme liability 15 (1,906)  (3,487) 

Total net assets  42,772  40,677 

     
The funds of the Charity:     
     
Unrestricted funds  13 44,124  43,571 
Revaluation reserve 8 367  367 
Pension (deficit) 15 (1,906)  (3,487) 

Total unrestricted funds   42,585  40,451 
Restricted income funds 13 187  226 

Total charity funds  42,772  40,677 

 
Approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees on 27 April 2018 and signed on their behalf by: 

 
Trustee: 
 
 
 
Sue Owen 

Trustee: 
 
 
 
Vivienne Dews 

 
The notes on pages 38 to 58 form an integral part of these accounts 

 
 



THE CHARITY FOR CIVIL SERVANTS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 

37 
 

 

 Note  2017  2016 
Cash flows from operating activities:   £000  £000 

Net cash used in operating activities 
 

A  (1,676)  (1,172) 

Cash flows from investing activities:      

Investment income 2  817  1,084 
Investment income reinvested 9a  (797)  (1,081) 

Purchase of intangible assets 7  (10)  - 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8  (81)  (12) 

Payments to pension fund 15  (705)  (383) 

Disposal of investments 9a  2,750  1,200 

Net cash provided by investing activities 
 

  
1,974  808 

Change  in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting 
period 

  
298  (364) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

  
243  607 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 
period 

B  
541  243 

      

Notes to the cash flow statement      
      

A. Reconciliation of net income/expenditure to net 
cash flow from operating activities 

  2017 
£000 

 2016 
£000 

 
Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as 
per the statement of financial activities) 

  
2,095  (458) 

Adjustments for:      

(Gains) on investments 9a  (2,412)  (2,443) 

Depreciation charges 8  69  71 

Investment income 2  (817)  (1,084) 

Decrease in debtors 10  28  282 

Increase in creditors 11  237  1 

Net pension scheme expenses 15  255  - 

Pension scheme (gains)/losses 15  (1,131)  2,459 

Net cash used in operating activities   (1,676)  (1,172) 

      

      

B.  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents   2017 
£000 

 
2016 
£000 

Cash in hand   541  243 

Total cash and cash equivalents   541  243 

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form an integral part of these Accounts 
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1. Accounting policies 
 
Status of the Charity 
The Charity was incorporated in England and Wales on 16th June 2010 (company 
number 7286399) and is limited by guarantee of its members.  The guarantee of each 
member is restricted to £1 sterling.  The address of the registered office is No. 5 Anne 
Boleyn’s Walk, Cheam, Surrey, SM3 8DY.   
 
The Charity meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. It is 
registered in England and Wales (charity number: 1136870) and in Scotland (charity 
number: SC041956). 
 
Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and 
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities 
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015) - 
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the Companies Act 2006.  The financial statements 
are drawn up under the historical cost convention except that the freehold property 
was valued as at 30 June 2000 and investments are carried at market value.   
 
The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling which is also the functional 
currency of the Charity. 
 
The Charity has one wholly owned subsidiary undertaking, CSBF Enterprises Limited 
(company number 03119311).  This is not consolidated on the basis that the amounts 
in the subsidiary are immaterial in the context of the Charity.   
 
Going concern 
After making enquires, the trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Charity 
has adequate resources to continue its activities for the foreseeable future. 
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial 
statements as outlined in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities on pages 28-29. 
There are no material uncertainties casting doubt on going concern. 

 
Income 
Income is recognised when a transaction or other event results in an increase in the 
Charity’s assets or a reduction in its liabilities.  Income is recognised in the accounts 
of the Charity when all of the following criteria are met: 
 Entitlement – control over the rights or other access to the economic benefit has 

passed to the Charity. 
 Probability – it is more likely than not that the economic benefits associated with 

the transaction or gift will flow to the Charity. 
 Measurement – the monetary value or amount of the income can be measured 

reliably and the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the 
transaction can be measured reliably. 

 
Contributions, and any related recoverable tax, are accounted for when they are due.  
Donations are accounted for when received.  Pecuniary legacies are recorded as 
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income when notified; residual legacies are recorded when the Charity is legally 
entitled to the income, receipt is probable and the amounts can be reasonably 
quantified.  Income from investments is accounted for when distributions are 
notified by the investment managers. 
 
Expenditure and irrecoverable VAT 
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to commit 
the Charity to expenditure as a result of a past event, it is probable that settlement will 
be required and the amount of the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably. 
 
Grants payable are accounted for when approved by the Charity and notified to 
beneficiaries.  All other expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis.   
 
Governance costs represent expenditure on strategic planning for the Charity’s 
future development, internal and external audit, legal advice to trustees and costs 
associated with constitutional and statutory requirements including the cost of 
Board meetings and preparing statutory accounts.   
 
Costs which cannot be directly attributed to individual activities reflected on the 
Statement of Financial Activities are allocated on a basis consistent with the use of 
resources, being the relevant proportions of either staff costs, time spent or assets 
utilised.   
 
Irrecoverable VAT is charged as a cost against the activity for which the expenditure 
was incurred 
 
Allocation of support costs 
Support costs are those functions that assist the work of the Charity but do not directly 
undertake charitable activities.  Support costs include central management and office 
costs, finance, personnel, information technology, defined benefit pension scheme 
expenses and governance costs which support the Charity’s activities.  These costs 
have been allocated between cost of raising funds and expenditure on charitable 
activities.  
 
Tangible fixed assets  
Tangible fixed assets costing more than £1,000 are capitalised.  All fixed assets are 
recorded at cost, except the freehold property which was re-valued as at 30 June 2000 
and is recorded at this value, and are depreciated at rates to write off the excess of the 
cost or valuation over the anticipated residual value of individual assets evenly over 
their estimated useful lives.  These rates are currently as follows: 
 

Freehold building and property improvements 2-3% p.a. on valuation and cost 

Fixtures, fittings & office equipment 15% p.a. on cost 

Other computer hardware & software 
purchased before 1 January 2017 

33% p.a. on cost 
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Intangible fixed assets 
Intangible fixed assets are non-monetary fixed assets that do not have physical 
substance but are identifiable and are controlled by the Charity through custody or 
legal rights.  An intangible asset is recognised when it is separable or arises from 
contractual or other legal rights and if it is probable that it’s expected future economic 
benefits will flow to the Charity, and if its cost or value can be measured reliably. 
Intangible fixed assets costing more than £2,000 are capitalised. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently at cost less 
impairment and less any accumulated amortisation. The residual value of intangible 
fixed assets is nil when calculating the charge for amortisation unless reliable 
evidence exists to the contrary.  Amortisation of intangible fixed assets is charged as 
an expense to the relevant statement of financial activities (SoFA) category reflecting 
the use of the asset. 
 
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic 
lives. If the useful life cannot be estimated reliably it is presumed to be no more than 
five years. Amortisation commences on development expenditure when an intangible 
asset is available for use.  
 
The amortisation rates used are as follows: 
Software and website costs: 33⅓ % per annum 
 
Intangible assets are only reviewed for impairment if there are indicators that the 
asset may be impaired. 
 
Investment assets 
Investments are measured initially at cost and valued in the balance sheet at fair value 
(their market value) at the balance sheet date. Investment net gains and losses, 
whether realised or unrealised, are combined and shown in the heading ‘Net 
gains/(losses) on investments’ in the Statement of Financial Activities. 
 
Pensions 
Employer costs relating to the defined contribution pension scheme are included as 
expenditure when they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.  
 
The Charity also contributes to a defined benefit pension scheme, which was closed 
in 2004 to future benefit accrual.  The current service costs of the scheme, together 
with the scheme interest cost less the expected return on the scheme assets for the 
year, are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities.  The actuarial gains and 
losses on the scheme are recognised immediately as other recognised gains and 
losses.   
 
The assets of the scheme are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date.  
Liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis at the balance sheet date using the 
projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return 
on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term to the scheme liabilities.  The 
resulting defined benefit asset or liability is presented separately after other net 
assets on the face of the balance sheet.   
 
 
 



THE CHARITY FOR CIVIL SERVANTS 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

41 
 
 

Financial instruments 
The Charity has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 
financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at 
transaction value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial assets held 
at amortised cost comprise cash and bank and in hand, short term cash deposits 
together with debtors excluding prepayments. Financial liabilities held at amortised 
cost comprise short and long term creditors excluding deferred income and taxation 
payable. No discounting has been applied to these financial instruments on the basis 
that the periods over which amounts will be settled are such that any discounting 
would be immaterial. 
  
Investments, including bonds and cash held as part of the investment portfolio are 
held at fair value at the balance sheet date, with gains and losses being recognised 
within income and expenditure. Investments in subsidiary undertakings are held at 
cost less impairment. 
 
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
In the application of the accounting policies, trustees are required to make 
judgements, estimates, and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and 
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised 
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affected current and future periods. 
  
The only significant source of uncertainty in our estimations that have a significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is the defined benefit 
pension scheme. The Charity recognises its liability to its defined benefit pension 
scheme, which involves a number of provisions and assumptions as disclosed in the 
Note 15. 
 
2. Investment income 

 2017  2016 
 £000  £000 
Interest receivable 1  3 

Interest from Baring Asset Management portfolio  19  - 

Interest from Baring Asset Management portfolio re-invested 226  184 

Dividends from Baring Asset Management portfolio re-invested 571  808 

Net finance income – defined benefit pension scheme -  89 

 817  1,084 
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3. Expenditure 
       

 Financial 
Support 

 (Note 3a) 

Direct 
Activities 

 

Support 
 costs 

(Note 3b) 

2017 
Total 

 2016 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 

Costs of raising funds       

Fundraising & engagement - 921 906 1,827  2,000 

Investment costs - 144 - 144  125 

 - 1,065 906 1,971  2,125 

Charitable activities       

Alleviating need 2,554 2,355 1,283 6,192  5,300 

Total expenditure at 2017 2,554 3,420 2,189 8,163  7,425 

Total expenditure at 2016 2,618 3,287 1,520 7,425   

 
(a) Analysis of financial support* 
 

2017 
One-off 

2017 
Ongoing 

2017 
Total  

2016 
One-off 

2016 
Ongoing 

2016 
Total  

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

to help in the following circumstances:        

- bereavement 210 - 210 265 - 265 

- disability 232 - 232 268 - 268 

- domestic abuse 56 - 56 67 - 67 

- emergency situation 40 - 40 32 - 32 

- ill health 511 105 616 561 126 687 

- poor wellbeing 64 - 64 106 - 106 

- reduced or low income 901 9 910 750 12 762 

- relationship breakdown 341 - 341 317 - 317 

- unsafe living arrangements 40 - 40 41 - 41 

- unstable living arrangements 45 - 45 69 - 69 

- community projects - - - 4 - 4 

 2,440 114 2,554 2,480 138 2,618 

 
* In 2016 we amended the way we categorise provided financial support and started 
analysing it by the circumstances which led people to come to us for financial support.  
 
There were no repayable grants (2016: 1) agreed during the year (2016: £2k). The total 
outstanding at 31 December is shown in Note 9 to the Accounts. 
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(b) Analysis of support costs 
 

         2017 2016 

 Management Governance 
DB 

Pension 
Scheme 

Finance 
H.R & 

Training 
Insight & 
Analysis 

IT   
Central 

Services 
Total Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Costs of 
raising funds           

Fundraising & 
engagement 221 22 127 88 97 98 127 126 906 760 

Charitable 
activities           

Alleviating 
need 331 22 127 131 144 147 191 190 1,283 760 

At 2017  552 44 254 219 241 245 318 316 2,189 1,520 

At 2016  396 32 - 234 204 34 332 288 1,520  
 

Allocation is based on the use of resources, being the relevant proportions of staff costs, time spent and 
assets utilised.   

 
 

(c) Analysis of governance costs 2017 2016 

  £000 £000 
Board of Trustees expenses  1 1 
Annual Reports & accounts  7 6 
Audit fees  22 22 
Other fees paid to auditors  5 - 
Legal & Consultancy fees  9 3 
 44 32 

 
4. Net Income/expenditure for the year 
 

  2017 2016 

This is stated after charging/crediting:  £000 £000 

Depreciation charge for the year  69 71 

Auditors’ remuneration – audit fees  22 22 

Other fees paid to auditors  5 - 
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5. Trustees and employees 
 
The trustees and persons connected with them have not received or obtained any 
remuneration or other financial benefits during the year, directly or indirectly from 
the Charity’s funds (2016: nil).  During the year one trustee was reimbursed a total of 
£109 travelling expenses (2016: three trustees, £361).   
 

 
 
Number of employees with emoluments (including taxable benefits but excluding 
employer pension costs) exceeding £60,000 

 2017 2016 
£60,001 - £70,000 2 0 

£70,001 - £80,000 0 1 

£80,001 - £90,000 1 0 

£90,001 - £100,000 1 1 

Employer pension contributions paid in respect of a defined 
contributions pension scheme 

£37,401 £42,596 

 
Four posts comprise the key management personnel of the Charity - the Chief Executive Officer 
and three Directors.  The total employee benefits of the key management personnel of the 
Charity were £404,357 (2016: £377,176), including salary, employer pension contributions, 
Health Cash Plan premiums and employer National Insurance contributions.  The Director of 
Help and Advisory Services left and was replaced in year.  Five people, therefore, occupied these 
four posts during 2017. 
 
Our senior management team remuneration in 2017 was as follows: 
 
 
 

Employee and staff costs   2017  2016 

Staff costs during the year were as follows:   £000  £000 

Salaries   3,006  2,681 

Employer’s national insurance   307  270 

Employer’s regular pension scheme contributions    402  381 

   3,715  3,332 

During the year there were no termination payments made.  There were no outstanding payments at 
the year end. 

 
 
Average number  - Full-time equivalents (Headcount)   

2017 

 
 

2016 
 Regional HQ Total  Total 

Cost of raising funds 6(6)  11 (12) 17 (18)  23 (24) 

Alleviating Need – grants & allowances 19 (21) 27 (30) 46 (51)  38 (42) 

Management & support - 24 (27) 24 (27)  17 (20) 

At 2017 25 (27)    62 (69) 87 (96)  78 (86) 

At 2016 22 (24) 56 (62) 78 (86)   
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 2017 2016  

Position 
Date of 

joining/ 
leaving 

Basic 
Salary 

Benefits 
Employers 

Pension 
conts. 

Total 
remuneration  

Total 
remuneration 

Chief Executive  £94,690 £429 £13,257 £108,376 £106,222 

Director of Help and 
Advisory 
*(position 1) 

Stepped 
down 1 
Aug 2017 
 

£44,530 £117 £10,242 £54,889 £92,872 

Director of Help and 
Advisory 
*(position 2) 

Promoted  
1 Aug 2017 

£31,250 £83 £4,375 £35,708 n/a 

Director of Finance & 
Corporate Services 

Joined 18 
Apr 2016 

£80,275 £218 £11,239 £91,732 £62,452 

Director of 
Marketing and 
Audience 
Engagement 
 

Joined 
September 
2016 

£69,586 £218 £4,140 £73,944 £22,959 

Director of Finance & 
Corporate Services 
(Part time) 

Left 
17 March 
2016 
 

n/a n/a n/a n/a £18,645 

Director of 
Fundraising & 
Communications 
 

Left 31 
May 2016 

n/a n/a n/a n/a £36,869 

 
 2017 2016 
Total remuneration £364,649 £340,019 

Employers NI £39,708 £37,157 

Grand Total £404,357 £377,176 

 
The annual salary of the Outgoing and Incoming Director of Help and 
Advisory was as follows: 

  

 Position 1 - £76,824 Full year equivalent   

 Position 2 - £75,000 Full year equivalent    
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6. Volunteers 
 
The Charity had 333 volunteers situated across the UK by the end of 2017, we recruited 
112 new volunteers throughout the year.  The majority of these volunteers are working 
civil servants and are based in 35 government departments. 
 
Our volunteers have either received help in the past or have a colleague, family 
member or friend who has received help and are inspired to contribute to the Charity 
in this way. Volunteers support the delivery of help and advice by visiting applicants 
to assist with the completion of applications.  They circulate and promote the Charity’s 
newsletters and material within their workplaces.  Volunteers also help to promote the 
Charity’s services by distributing promotional materials, placing the Charity stand at 
their workplace events and encouraging attendance at talks on the services we provide 
and advising colleagues on how they can apply for help.  Volunteers help us testing our 
new digital initiatives, forms and tools, prior to their launch to enable us to ensure our 
products are offering the right service as well as functioning to a high standard. 
 
In addition to promoting the Charity in their workplaces and/or communities, our 333 
volunteers (as at 31 December 2017) have also undertaken the following measurable 
activities: 
 

 90 visits to applicants by volunteers 
 22 volunteers have participated in user testing*  
 132 volunteers attended awareness events to represent the Charity  
 80 material requests for distribution in the workplace by volunteers 

 
*digital initiatives, forms and tools that are in development by the Charity. 
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7. Intangible fixed assets 

 
   Website & 

software 
 Total 

Cost or valuation    £000  £000 

Balance at  01.01.2017    0  0 

Additions    10  10 

Balance at  31.12.2017    10  10 

Accumulated amortization        

Balance at  01.01.2017    0  0 

Charge for the year     0  0 

Balance at  31.12.2017    0  0 

Net book value at 31.12.2017    10  10 
Net book value at 31.12.2016    0  0 

The Charity did not have intangible assets in 2016. 
 
No amortisation of intangible assets was charged in 2017. When the website portal has 
been used, a charge of amortisation of intangible assets will be included in Fundraising 
costs in the SoFA. 
 
8. Tangible fixed assets 
 

 
 

Freehold 
property 

 
Fixtures, 

fittings and 
equipment 

 Total 

Cost or valuation  £000  £000  £000 
Balance at 01.01.2017  940  474  1,414 
Additions  0  81  81 
Adjustment for disposals  --  (50)  (50) 
Balance at 31.12.2017  940  505  1,445 
Accumulated depreciation       

Balance at 01.01.2017  201  408  609 
Charge for the year   12  57  69 
Adjustment for disposals  --  (50)  (50) 
Balance at 31.12.2017  213  415  628 
Net book value at 31.12.2017  727  90  817 
Net book value at 31.12.2016  739  66  805 

The Charity’s property at No 5 Anne Boleyn’s Walk, Cheam, was re-valued by Christie 
& Co, Surveyors, Valuers and Agents, in June 2000.  All adjustments necessary to 
reflect the value as at that date were charged to the Revaluation Reserve.  Subsequent 
depreciation has been based on the re valued amounts. 
 
Fixtures, fittings and equipment no longer in use were scrapped in the year. 
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9. Fixed asset investments 
 
(a) Investment portfolio 
The investment portfolio is managed by Baring Asset Management and is held mainly 
in the form of bonds and index-linked funds. 

 

The investments shown above as managed by Barings have been valued at fair value 
(their market value) on 31 December 2017. 
 

Additional disclosure on investments held by Baring Asset Management is set out 
below, reflecting the asset types and geographical analysis of the underlying 
investments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Movements in the investment portfolio in the year 
 

 2017 
£000 

2016 
£000 

Market value at 1 January    42,721 40,486 
Dividends received – re-invested   571 808 

Interest re-invested   226 184 

Net ( disposals) cash   (2,750) (1,200) 

Net investment   gain   2,412 2,443 

Market value at 31 December    43,180 42,721 

 2017  2016 

 Market 
Value 
£000 

  
% Total 

 Market 
Value 
£000 

 
% Total 

Equities  -United Kingdom 3,877  8.98%  2,868  6.71% 
 -Europe 7,433  17.21%  6,816  15.95% 
 -Global 446  1.03%  -   
 -Japan 5,646  13.08%  3,890  9.11% 
 -Emerging market 587  1.36%  2,509  5.87% 

  17,989  41.66%  16,083  37.64% 
         

Bonds  15,156  35.10%  16,196  37.91% 
                         

Alternatives Property 3,087  7.15%  2,984  6.98% 

 Alternative equity 10  0.02%  11  0.03% 
 Precious metals 2,893  6.70%  857  2.01% 

 5,990  13.87%  3,852  9.02% 

        

Cash and cash equivalents   3,657  8.47%  7,010  16.41% 

        

Foreign exchange contracts  388  0.90%  (420)  -0.98% 

        

Total portfolio 43,180  100.00%  42,721  100.00% 
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At 31 December 2017, the Charity had entered into sixteen foreign exchange hedging 
contracts to reduce the risk of currency fluctuations in overseas assets. These contracts 
expired by 1st February 2018. 
 
 
(b) Investment in subsidiary 
 
The Charity has an investment in one wholly owned subsidiary CSBF Enterprises 
Limited, a company registered in England & Wales, No. 03119311, with ordinary issued 
share capital of 7 shares of £1 each.  The investment is held at a cost of £7.  As the 
accounts are rounded to £000s, this investment is not shown on the balance sheet, and 
consolidated accounts are not prepared, as the subsidiary is not material to the assets, 
liabilities or net results of the Charity.  The subsidiary does not employ any staff directly 
and an administrative charge of £13,980 (2016: £13,980) has been made to offset the 
cost of time spent by Charity staff on behalf of CSBF Enterprises Ltd.  At the year end 
the subsidiary donated all its profits being £2,935 (2016: £14,625) to the Charity.  Its 
reserves at year end were £11,847 (2016: £11,847).  
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10. Debtors 

 
The Charity was informed before the end of 2017 that the Forestry Commission Benevolent 
Fund (FCBF) would be wound up in 2018 and its trustees had chosen to donate the 
remaining assets to the Charity for Civil Servants.  As at 31 December 2017, the directors 
believed that the transfer of FCBF’s asset was probable.  The final meeting of the Trustees 
at which the formal decision and agreement to wind up the FCBF took place on 21 March 
2018 and the Charity received £94k. The contingent asset has not been recognised as a 
receivable at 31 December 2017 as receipt of the amount was dependent on the outcome of 
the final Trustee Meeting. 
 
At 31 December 2017, the Charity was notified about one residuary legacy which was not 
recognised as income in the statement of financial activities as measurement was not 
confirmed at year end although receipt was probable. The legacy amount is likely to be less 
than £73k. 
 
11. Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 

 
 

 
2017 

£000 

  
2016 
£000 

Trade creditors 163  75 

Other creditors 3  2 

Pension contributions 42  40 

Taxation and social security costs 85  73 

Accruals and deferred income 278  144 

 571  334 

 
 
 
 
 

  
2017 

£000  
2016 
£000 

Trade debtors: 2  1 
Other debtors:    

- Repayable grants 81  88 
- Sundry debtors 2  4 

Prepayments 84  88 
Accrued income:    

- Contributions from individuals 184  198 
- Legacies 216  225 
- Tax credits on gift aid donations 92  95 
- Other accrued income 3  1 
- Investment income 19  - 

Due from CSBF Enterprises Ltd 18  29 
 

 

 

 

 

701  729 
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12. Operating Leases 

 
13. Funds 

 
The Charity maintains various types of fund as set out below. 
 
Unrestricted funds 
 
Unrestricted funds represent the free funds of the Charity which are expendable at the 
discretion of the trustees to further the objects of the Charity. 
 
Restricted funds 
 
Restricted funds are those funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by donors or which have been raised by the Charity for particular 
purposes. 
 
Customs & Excise Family Fund 
A restricted donation of £30,000 was given to the Charity in March 2006, following the 
dissolution of The Customs & Excise Family Fund.  This was to provide Christmas grants to 
certain members of the Family Fund, in line with the wishes of their trustees.  Interest 
earned on the Restricted fund was £19 (2016: £91) and grants expenditure was £900 (2016: 
£840). 
 
Creedy House Care Foundation 
Creedy House Care Foundation, a registered charity, whose object was to make payments to 
beneficiaries, was dissolved at 31 December 2010 and its net assets were transferred to the 
Charity as restricted for use of beneficiaries’ payments.  Interest earned on the restricted 
fund was £159 (2016: £806) and £24,348 was spent in 2017 (2016: £18,771). 
 
Fenton Trust 
Restricted donations of £20,000 and £15,000 were given to the Charity in March 2013 and 
September 2015 respectively to support current, former and retired civil servants of grades 
executive officer and above residing in the UK.  This is to provide grants for essential 
household bills and items and help with mobility requirements.  £3,104 was spent in 2017 
(2016: £6,098).  

 2017 
£000 

 2016 
£000 

Rentals charged in the year    

Equipment 33  24 
    

 Equipment 

 
2017 

£000 
 

2016 
£000 

The total future minimum lease payments under operating 
leases are due as follows: 

   

- in less than one year 33  33 
- in more than one year and less than five years 42  75 
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Civil Aviation Authority Fund 
A donation provided by the Civil Aviation Authority was restricted to provide help to CAA 
retired staff and their dependants.  In 2017, the interest earned on the restricted fund was 
£7 (2016: £31) and no funds were spent (2016: 750). 
 
Dementia Fund 
In 2014, CSIS Charity Fund donated £28,000 to be spent on Dementia services.  No funds 
were spent in 2017 (2016: Nil). 
 
DVLA Fund 
In 2014, the Charity received a legacy of £36,084 to benefit DVLA staff at Morriston.  In 
addition, £86 of the closing balance was received in 2017. £10,259 was spent in 2017 (2016: 
£13,426).   
 
Analysis of movements 

 
        

Restricted Funds 
Opening 
Balance 

 Income  Transfers 
between 

Funds 

 Expenditure  Closing 
Balance 

 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
Customs & Excise  
Family Fund 
 

18  -  -  (1)  17 

Creedy House Care 
Foundation 

158  -  -  (24)  134 

Fenton Trust 10  -  -  (3)  7 
CAA Fund 6  -  -  -  6 
Dementia Project Fund 23  -  -  -  23 
DVLA fund 11  -  -  (11)  - 

Balance at 31 
December 2017 

226 
 

-  -  (39)  187 

 
Analysis of net assets by fund 

Unrestricted funds 
Intangible 
& tangible 

fixed assets 

  
Investment 

assets 

 Net 
Current 

assets 

 Defined 
Pension 
scheme 

  
 

Total 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
General reserves 827  43,180  484  -  44,491 
Pension reserve -  -  -  (1,906)  (1,906) 
Restricted funds          
Customs & Excise 
Family Fund 

-  -  
17 

 -  
17 

Creedy House Care 
Foundation 

-  -  
134 

 -  
134 

Fenton Trust -  -  7  -  7 
CAA Fund -  -  6  -  6 
Dementia Project 
Fund 

-  -  
23 

 -  23 

DVLA fund -  -  -  -  - 

Balance at 31 
December 2017 

827  43,180  671  (1,906)  42,772 
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Analysis of movements for the Year Ended 31 December 2016 
 
 
Restricted Funds 

Opening 
Balance 

 Income  Transfers 
between 

Funds 

 Expenditure  Closing 
Balance 

 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
 

Customs & Excise 

Family Fund 

 

21 

  
 

    
(1) 

  
20 Customs & Excise  

Family Fund 
 

19  -  -  (1)  18 

Creedy House Care 
Foundation 

176  1  -  (19)  158 

Fenton Trust 16  -  -  (6)  10 
CAA Fund 7  -  -  (1)  6 
Dementia Project Fund 23  -  -  -  23 
DVLA fund 24  -  -  (13)  11 

Balance at 31 
December 2016 

265 
 

1  -  (40)  226 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Analysis of net assets by fund the Year Ended 31 December 2016 

Unrestricted funds 
Tangible 

fixed 
assets 

  
Investment 

assets 

 Net 
Current 

assets 

 Defined 
Pension 
scheme 

  
 

Total 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
General reserves 805  42,721  412  -  43,938 
Pension reserve -  -  -  (3,487)  (3,487) 
Restricted funds          
Customs & Excise 
Family Fund 

-  -  18  -  18 

Creedy House Care 
Foundation 

-  -  158  -  158 

Fenton Trust -  -  10  -  10 
CAA Fund -  -  6  -  6 
Dementia Project Fund -  -  23  -  23 

DVLA fund -  -  11  -  11 

Balance at 31 
December 2016 

805  42,721  638  (3,487)  40,677 
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14. Taxation 
 
No corporation tax arises as the Charity for Civil Servants is a registered Charity, and 
is able to take advantage of the tax relief available to charitable bodies. 
 
15. Pension schemes  
 
The Charity for Civil Servants participates in a non-contributory multi-employer 
defined benefit staff pension scheme, which was formed for all permanent members 
of staff, within certain age criteria, of the Charity for Civil Servants and certain other 
employers.  The assets of the scheme, which are independently administered by JLT 
Benefits Solutions Ltd, are held separately by the trustees of the scheme.  The scheme 
was closed to all staff for future benefit accrual with effect from 5 April 2004. 
 
The Charity also operates a defined contribution group personal pension scheme 
which is administered by Legal & General.  The Charity pays varying levels of 
contributions on behalf of the employees, based on their number of years’ service and 
levels of employees’ own contributions. 
 
During 2016, a full triennial actuarial valuation of the defined benefit scheme was 
undertaken at 6 April 2016 by an independent qualified actuary.  This revealed a 
deficit, on the assumptions used, of £3,836,000.  The employers signed up to a recovery 
plan which is intended to eliminate the shortfall by 5 April 2023. The Charity is 
committed to paying £458,000 per annum for 6 years from 6 April 2017 to April 2023 
increasing by 3% per annum plus £141,000 per annum in respect of expenses. 
 
The best estimate of contributions to be paid by the Charity for the year beginning 1 
January 2018 is £609,000.  Detailed disclosures for the defined benefit pension 
scheme, in accordance with FRS102, are set out below. 

 

Present value of scheme liabilities, fair value of assets and deficit 
 2017 

£000 
 2016 

£000 

Fair value of scheme assets 21,796  20,557 

Present value of scheme liabilities (23,702)  (24,044) 

(Deficit) in Scheme (1,906)  (3,487) 

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of scheme liabilities 
 2017 

£000 
 

2016 
£000 

Scheme liabilities at 1 January 
 

24,044  20,369 
 Change in employer’s share -  (10) 

Scheme expenses 161  212 

Interest cost 637  764 

Actuarial (gain)/losses (143)  3,785 

Benefits paid and scheme expenses (997)          (728) 

Gain due to benefit changes -         (348) 

Scheme liabilities at 31 December 23,702  24,044 
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Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of scheme assets 

 
 2017 

£000 
 

2016 
£000 

Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 20,557  18,869 

Change in employer’s share (9)  (3) 

Interest income 552  710 

Actuarial gains 988  1,326 

Contributions by employer   705  383 

Benefits paid & scheme expenses (997)  (728) 

Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December 21,796  20,557 

 
Amounts included within Statement of Financial Activities 

   

 2017 
£000 

 2016 
£000 

Interest cost (637)  (764) 

Interest income 552  710 

Scheme expenses (161)  (212) 

Gain due to benefit changes - 
- 
- 

 348 

Change in employer’s share (9) 
 

 7 
Total (charged)/credited within net income 
 

(255)  89 

Actuarial gains /(losses) 1,131  (2,459) 
Total credited/(charged) to the Statement of Financial 
Activities 
 
 

876  (2,370) 

 
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains or losses recognised in the statement of recognised 
gains and losses since the adoption of FRS102 is £1,201,000 loss (2016: £2,332,000).  
 
Fair value of scheme assets 
 

 2017 
£000 

  
% 

 2016 
£000 

  
% 

Global equity 14,204  65%  12,874  63% 

Corporate bonds 7,449  34%  7,658  37% 

Cash 143  1%  25  0% 

Total value of assets  21,796  100%  20,557  100% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



THE CHARITY FOR CIVIL SERVANTS 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 

56 
 
 

Assumptions 2017  2016 
    
Inflation (RPI) 3.4%  3.5% 
Inflation (CPI) 2.4%  2.5% 
Discount rate 2.5%  2.7% 
Allowance for increase in pensions: lower of RPI and 5% 
 

3.25%  3.4% 
Allowance for increase in pensions: lower of CPI or 5% 2.4%  2.5% 
(effective from April 2017)    
Rate of revaluation for deferred pensioners: RPI + 1% 4.4%  4.5% 
Rate of revaluation for deferred pensioners: Lower of CPI or 5% 2.4%  2.5% 
Cash commutation allowance (% tax free cash) 85%  85% 
Withdrawal allowance None  None 
Assumed life expectations (no. years) on retirement age of 60    
- Retiring today: males 26.9  27.2 
- Retiring today: females 28.9  29.4 
- Retiring in 15 years: males 28.8  28.9 
- Retiring in 15 years: females 30.8  31.2 

 
 
The amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows: 
 

 2017 
£000 

 2016 
£000 

 2015 
£000 

 2014 
£000 

 2013 
£000 

Defined benefit obligation (23,702)  (24,044)  (20,369)  (21,631)  (19,602) 
Scheme assets 21,796  20,557  18,869  19,098  17,336 

Deficit (1,906)  (3,487)  (1,500)  (2,533)  (2,266) 

          
Adjustment due to 
limitations on recognition 
of surplus 
 

-  -    -  - 

Experience adjustment: 
gain/(loss) on scheme 
liabilities 

171  520  118  1,351  (1,377) 

Effect of changes in 
demographic/other 
assumptions re: the 
present value of the 
scheme liabilities; 
gain/loss 

(28)  (4,305)  981  (2,973)   

Return on scheme assets: 
gain/(loss) 
assets 

988  1,326  (344)  994  312 
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16. Financial instruments 
 

 2017 2016 

 £000 £000 
 

(a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1,158 884 

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value 43,180 42,721 

(c) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 486 261 

 
 
(a) Financial assets include cash, trade debtors, other debtors, accrued income and 

amounts due from subsidiaries. 
(b) Financial assets held at fair value include assets held as investments 
(c) Financial liabilities include trade creditors, accruals, pension contributions and 

other creditors. 
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17. Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 December 2016 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
Unrestricted 

Funds 
Restricted 

Funds 

2016 
Total 

Funds   
Income from  £000 £000 £000 
Donations and legacies 

      
  Contributions from individuals  5,220  -  5,220 

 Contributions from employer organisations  152  -  152 

 Legacies   185  -  185 

 Donations  200  -  200 

Fundraising events and other income  127  -  127 

     CSBF Enterprises Limited – profits donated  15  -  15 

Investments  1,083  1  1,084 

Total income  6,982  1  6,983 
 

Expenditure on 
      

Raising funds 
      

Fundraising  
 

2,000 
 

- 
 2,000 

Investment costs 
 

125  -  125 

Total costs of raising funds 
 

2,125  -  2,125 

Charitable activities       
 Alleviating need 

 
5,260  40  5,300 

Total charitable expenditure  5,260  40  5.300 

Total expenditure  7,385  40  7,425 

Net gains on investments  2,443  -  2,443 

Net income/(expenditure)  2,040  (39)  2,001 

Actuarial (loss) on defined benefit pension scheme  (2,459)  -  (2,459) 

Net movement in funds for the year  (419)  (39)  (458) 
       
Reconciliation of funds       
Funds brought forward at 1 January 2016  40,870  265  41,135 

Funds carried forward at 31 December 2016  40,451  226  40,677 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 


	1 DRAFT 2017 FRONT END Annual Report and Accounts
	2 DRAFT 2017 Independent Auditor’s Report to the Trustees
	3 DRAFT 2017 BACK END Annual Report and Accounts

